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Old 300 Grantees 
Landmarks 

Polly/Chance League 

Breen  League 

Keep  League 

Ashley Wilson Road 

524 S-Curve 

Red Bird Lane 

Cemetery 

Waddy Cabin 

Linville Creek 

R/R Track 

New Hwy 35 



Prior to John Sweeny Senior’s death 

he had amassed nearly 6500 acres of  

Land in three leagues 



The first Sweeny family deal was William B 

Sweeny (son of John Sweeny Sr.) buying ½ of the 

Polly Chance League bordering the Breen League 

in March of 1835.  



Soon after William sells Edwin Waller445 acres of 

Chance and 555 acres of Breen.  It is unclear how 

or when William got the Breen 555 acres. He later 

buys 2700 acres on the east side of the Brazos. 



In June 1836 John Sweeny Sr. buys 1/8 

of the Keep League.  



October 1836 Senior buys 1666 acres 

(3/8) of Breen league 



November of 1836 Senior buys 1/3 of 

Polly Chance League less 100 acres 

owned by someone else. This is the 

original land that became Juniors 

Plantation.  (The Sweeny Plantation) 

 



From early 1838 thru mid-1839 William is 

indebted to Robert Mills Company and 

mortgages most of his Polly Chance 

land as well as a promissory note from 

Waller. He also sells Allen Armstrong 325 

acres of his Polly Chance land.   

 



In May of 1839 William loses all his 

Polly/Chance land to Mills less the 

Waller, Armstrong tracts and 500 acres 

he retained. He dies  in Sept. 1840. 

It is unclear when, before or after 

Williams death,  Senior acquires the 555 

acres of Breen plus the east of the 

Brazos land.  



In January 1845 Senior, in a deal with the 

Mills brothers, swaps the east of the 

Brazos land plus money and purchases  

the Polly Chance land William once had 

less the Waller 445 acres, the Armstrong 

325 acres and 500 acres Williams wife 

retained. In addition Senior purchases 

another 1000 acre tract known as the 

Johnson Plantation.  



In April 1850 Senior buys 425 acres in 

the Alsberry League near the mouth of 

the Bernard River.  At some point he also 

acquires the Waller tract of land.  

In 1840 Senior buys another 1/8 of Keep 

league. This makes the total of the Keep 

League Senior ever owned at ¼ of 

league.  



Before his death in Jan. 1855 John Sweeny Sr.  

gifted his kids most of his land with slaves. 

The exact timing of these gifts is not clear, 

however we know from a 1840 document he 

mortgaged crops from his plantation as well 

as plantations of Thomas and Junior.    



Of the gifts made the only one 

documented prior to his death is the one 

to his daughter Sophia. The remainder 

are documented in a probate court 

partition agreement after Seniors death.  

Thomas 

555 acres where 

he resides 

Jordan 

555 acres 

Jordan 

135 acres 

Benjamin 

555 acres 

Sophia 

555 acres 

Junior 

1/3 league 

less 100 acres 

Samuel 

1700 acres plus 

Two minor children of William were left 

out of the partition agreement, however 

the following year they got significant 

land in Comal County that Senior had 

owned.  



Following John Sweeny Srs. death the 

“Home Plantation”, where John had 

resided,  consisted of 555 acres Breen 

and 555 acres Keep.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

In a partition agreement after taking into 

account all the previous gifts, it was 

decided; 

• Based on value of gifts, each would 

pay a proportionate share of the 

estates debt.  

• The “Home Plantation” would be sold 

and the proceeds be split.  

• Junior waived his right to any of it. 

And was appointed administrator.  

This left to share in the sell; 

• Samuel 

• Thomas 

• Jordan 

• Sophia 

• Benjamin 

 



Apparently the plantation did not sell 

and over the next couple of years 

several family transactions took place; 

 

• Samuel releases his rights to Thomas 

for money 

• Jordan releases his rights to Sophia 

for money 

• Benjamin releases his rights to 

Thomas plus sells Thomas his 555 

acre Breen tract including slaves, 

tools etc.  

• Thomas and Sophia cut a deal 

leaving Thomas with most of the 

Breen land and Sophia with the 

homestead tract. 



Final Distribution 
Does not include any future deals 

Thomas 

Jordan 

Jordan 

Note  The previously mentioned Alsberry 

land was split amongst all except Junior.  

Sophia had married John McGrew and 

this became the McGrew Plantation 



Using land record survey data and 

what other authors of Sweeny history 

have stated  this is believed to be the 

John Sweeny Sr, and later McGrew 

homestead.  

• Line passes by cabins 

 

• Stake in negro graveyard 

 

• Stake in corner of gin lot 

 

 



Calvit was also an Old 300 

grantee with a league in the 

Surfside area. It appears this 

tract of land laid dormant 

until an estate sell in 1852.    

It appears this tract laid dormant  

until 1891 with the possible exception  

of 2-3 former slaves of the Levi  

Jordan Plantation.    

Two other less known Keep League land tracts 

were Calvit and Crafton 



H Masterson ends up with this tract and 

sells T L Smith 350 acres in 1904 



• In 1905-06 the St. Louis/Brownsville/Mexico Railway 

lays track and begins running. 

• 100 feet wide right of ways were purchased by the  

R/R from numerous land owners across several  

leagues 

    

In 1906 Smith sells R/R 13 acres  

for a train station very likely creating 

a side track off the main line as 

well as a depot. 



In 1907 the county was petitioned for a road from the new station Adamston 

To Chances Prairie 



In 1908 the county appointed a Jury of View for road from near Levi Jordan 

Plantation to Adamson 



Map not drawn to scale. 
Would not fit in. 

Cemetery 

Blacks Ferry 

In 1907 J E Stevenson begins  

buying land in five leagues 



By 1910 J E Stevenson had amassed over  

12,000 acres in 5 leagues which he sold to  

the “Bernard River Land Development Company”. 
(R D McDonald President, L A McDonald Secretary.) 

Which included  most of the land Sweeny  

now resides.   



In 1910 surveyor J A Donaldson developed  a Sweeny 

town site plat for the “Bernard River Land Development  

Company”.(R D McDonald President, L A McDonald Secretary.)    

See plat next page 





In 1910 surveyor J A Donaldson developed  “Hurd’s 

Subdivision”  plat for the “Industrial Land Company”. 
(Burton D Hurd President)  

Plat Included;   

• Town site 

• Suburban Garden Farms 

• River front lots     
See plat next page 



• Hurd’s company bought and resold numerous lots and tracts from 

McDonald’s company with the bulk of activity between 1910 and 1914. 

• McDonalds company sold lots and tracts well into the 1950’s.  

 



• In June 1911 local residents petitioned the 

County to create “Common School  

District 32”  separating it from a  

much larger district. 

.  

Petition signees  

1911 “Common School  

District 32” 



District 32 Buys Lot For School 



Sweeny School Built 1912 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



• In 1913 residents petitioned for an 

election to create SISD. 

• Election passed.  

.  

In 1913 SISD 

.  



Petition signees 

.  



In 1945 Sweeny was incorporated. 

(City Limits at the time) 



Dividing line between Sweeny/McGrew 

land and Calvit. 

Dividing line between Sweeny/McGrew 

land and Calvit. 

Dividing line between Calvit 

land and Crafton 

1945 City Limits 

1910 Plat 



Main Street, Sweeny Texas, 1919 

submitted by Clyde McKinney.  

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



This document  is believed to 

be written by Clyde McKinney 

in the mid 1960’s and is a 

description of the 1919 map. 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Clyde McKinney 
Cont’d 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Clyde McKinney 
Cont’d 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Clyde McKinney 
Cont’d 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Clyde McKinney 
Cont’d 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Three Different Depots 

Images courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

• First depot built between 1906 and 

1907 and once called Adamston or 

Adamson. Fate unknown. 

 

• Second depot built in 1914, burned 

in May, 1961” per BCHM 

 

• Third depot built after 1961.  



Arrington Dry Goods and Grocery 
(Later Kimmey and Boswell)  

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

• Lots 11 & 12 originally bought 

from McDonalds by Emmit 

Rimmer, Levi Hankins and L A 

Riley in 1913 and likely built the 

building. 

• Bought by J T Arrington and  

     Creel Brockman in 1919. 

• Bought by L Hankins in 1921. 

• Bought by J C Brockman in 1923. 

• AF Kimmey buys in 1939 
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Eades Drug Store 
(writeup next page) 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

Blk 39 from 1910 Plat 
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2nd. St. 

• Eades bought lots 

9,10, 13 & 14 in 

1912 

Oxen hauling live oak logs in Sweeny in 1912 



Eades Drug Store 

Cont’d 

Courtesy Sweeny Chamber of Commerce 



• Identifying the 

Eades building 

Compare Buildings 

Images courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

Images courtesy of Facebook 

• Eades 

• Kimmey 



L A Riley Grocery  

Image courtesy of Facebook 

• Riley buys and sells back 

to McDonald lot 5 in 1913 

• Buys lots 6 & 7 from P B 

Carter in 1914 

• Buys lot 5 from W L 

Sweeny in 1917 

• Sells all to J C Brockman 

and the Arrington's in 1920 

but reserves use of the 

kitchen on lot 7 

 



Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

Vegetable Shed 
Andy Waters per BCHM 



Smiths Store 

T L Smith buys lots from McDonalds Company in 1912 and moves 

building from south side of the R/R tracks to town site lots 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Gin 

Probably T L Smiths on south side of R/R tracks 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Baptist Church 

C E Ballard buys lots and sells/gives them to 

Church Trustees in 1913/1914  

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 



Schradler’s Store 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

Oliver Schradler buys 

Lots 15-18 Block 30 

In 1912 

 



School Burns 1925 

Image courtesy of the Brazoria County Historical Museum 

Rebuilt and Opened 1927 

Named Berta Barclay in 1951 after long time teacher/principal 



End 


